
  

Issued on Friday 19 April 2024                             

 

 
Alison Broom, Chief Executive 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB COMMITTEE MEETING  

Date: Monday 29 April 2024 
Time: 10.30 am 

Venue: Town Hall, High Street, Maidstone 
            

Membership: 
 

Councillors English (Substitute Member), Garten, Joy and Trzebinski 

 
The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the 

meeting. Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports. 

AGENDA Page No. 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Notification of Substitute Members   

3. Election of Chairman   

4. Disclosures by Members and Officers   

5. Disclosures of Lobbying   

6. To consider whether any items should be taken in private 
because of the possible disclosure of exempt information  

 

7. Application for Review of a Premises Licence under the 

Licensing Act 2003 for The Zoo,10 - 11 Market Buildings, 
Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1HP  
 

8. Exempt Appendices to Item 7 -  Application for Review of a 
Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for The Zoo,10 - 

11 Market Buildings, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1HP 

1 - 196 

 
 
 

197 - 1112 

 



Agenda Item No: 
 

1 – Summary of Report 

Licence Reference 24/00761/REVIEW 

Report To: 
 

LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE  
(UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003) 
 

Date: 
 

15h APRIL 2024 

Report Title: 
 

THE ZOO, 10 - 11 MARKET BUILDINGS, MAIDSTONE, KENT, ME14 1HP 
 
Application for Review of a Premises Licence  
   

Report Author: Lorraine Neale 
 

Summary: 
 
This report is classified as public, with an exempt appendix. The Appendix is 
referenced as appendix 8 to this report, This appendix contains exempt 
information as classified in paragraph/s 1, 2 and 7 to Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972, in that they contain information relating to 
1 - Information relating to any individual. 2 - Information which is likely to 
reveal the identity of an individual. 7 - Information relating to any action taken 
or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution 
of crime. The public interest in maintaining this exemption outweighs the 
public interest in their disclosure due to the nature of the information provided 
 
Kent Police have applied for a Review of the Premises Licence Appendix 1 
pursuant to s.51 Licensing Act 2003.  
 
Grounds for Review 

 
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
 
Additional evidence has been provided by the Police in the form of documents 
(Appendix 8) and CCTV  
 
 

Affected Wards: 
 

 High Street Ward                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Recommendations
: 
 

The Committee is asked to determine the application and decide 
whether to take such steps as members consider appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 

Policy Overview: 
 

The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance 
and the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy under the 
Licensing Act 2003. Where the decision departs from Policy or Guidance the 
departure must be directed solely at the attainment of the licensing objectives, 
and that such departure be supported by proper reasons. 
 

Other Material 
Implications: 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS: In considering this application it is appropriate to consider 
the rights of both the licence holder and the applicant together with other 
parties, such as “responsible authorities” and\or “interested parties” 
(objectors). The hearing procedure for reviewing premises licences has been 
formulated to ensure a fair hearing for all parties.  
 
LEGAL: Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Authority has a duty to 
exercise licensing control of relevant premises.  
 
 
 

1

Agenda Item 7



Background 
Papers: 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
Home Office Guidance Document issued under section 182 of The Licensing 
Act 2003 as amended 
Maidstone Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

Contacts: 
 

Mrs Lorraine Neale at: lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk – tel: 01622 602528 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2

mailto:lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk


Agenda Item No. 1 
 
 
Report Title: 
 

 
THE ZOO, 10 - 11 MARKET BUILDINGS, MAIDSTONE, KENT, ME14 
1HP 
 
Application for Review of a Premises Licence  

 
Purpose of the Report  

 
The report advises Members of an application for the review of a premises licence, brought by 
Kent Police in respect of the premises The Zoo, 10 - 11 Market Buildings, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 
1HP (Appendix 1) 
  

 
Issue to be Decided and Options 

 

1. Members must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take 
such steps mentioned below as members consider appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  

2. The steps are: 

• To modify the conditions of the licence (including for a period not exceeding 3 
months); 

• To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence (including for a 
period not exceeding 3 months); 

• To remove the designated premises supervisor; 

• To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; 

• To revoke the licence. 

• To issue a warning or caution. 

• To take no action. 

Background 
 

3. The relevant statutory provisions are sections 51 to 53 inclusive of the Licensing Act 
2003. the Licensing Objectives are as follows: 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 

• Public Safety; 

• The prevention of public nuisance; and 

• The protection of children from harm  

4. The venue has held a premise licence since 2nd March 2010, the current premises  
licence was granted on 22nd September 2023 following a minor variation submitted by the  
licence holder to add the following conditions to the licence:- 

 Cooling down period: 
 We will operate a cooling down period of 15mins, prior to the end of session, where we   

will decrease sound levels to create a more calming atmosphere preparing us for close  
and full dispersal of patrons. 

 Body Worn cameras: 

3



The supply and use of body worn recording devices set to buffering mode and activated  
to record mode when an incident occurs. 
SIA deployment on dispersal: 
To deploy 2 x SIA door supervisors to the High Street 15mins prior to closing, with an  
additional 4 x SIA door supervisors to support and assist the dispersal process. 
No New entries: 
There will be no new entries to the venue after 3am, excluding those that have been in the 
venue earlier. 
Door Supervisors: 
The venue will only use SIA registered supervisors, no marshal’s will be used at the 
venue. 
To modify an existing condition from: 
We will scan customers on a deemed risk basis from 03:00am. Smokers must remain in 
the designated smoking area at all times. 
To: 
We will scan customers on a deemed risk basis until 03:00am. Smokers must remain in 
the designated smoking area at all times. 
 

 A copy of the licence is attached as Appendix 2 
 

5. The application has been correctly advertised with a notice displayed on the premises and 
at the Council offices for the required period.  

6. The applicant is requesting that the Sub-Committee:- . 

1) Reduce the terminal hour for all licensable activities to 00:00 or alternatively:- 

2) Reduce the terminal hour for alcohol to 00:00 and all regulated entertainment to 
01:00. 

3) Current conditions at annex 3 remain on the licence.  

7 There have been 116 comments of support received from:- 

1  Chloe Hughes 

2  Sophie Elmore 

3  Dave Calver 

4  Lauren Davies 

5  Bill Swift 

6  Arnold Sharp 

7  Karl Wenham 

8  David Cornwall 

9  Jay Matthews 

10  Daniel Williams 

11  Emily Rose 

12  Aimee Webb 

13  Kieran Empson 

14  Megan Welfare 

15  Isabel Jenkins 

16  Rebecca Davis 

17  Lucy Speight 

18  Matthew Brooks 

19  Ahmet Suncu 

20  Amie Freeman 

21  Kieron Jenkins 

22  Natasha Coulstock 

23  Cameron Jolly 

24  Kim Baldock 

25  Leah Szak 

26  Whitney Deuchar 

4



27  David Odunlami 

28  Karen Smallwood 

29  Twenty Rivers 

30  Robert Hunt 

31  Samantha Hunt 

32  Alex Garnett 

33  Rjay Garnety 

34  Graham Wood 

35  Addam Mathews 

36  Michael Macpherson 

37  Charlotte Mccallam 

38  Jason Halle 

39  Jade Gold 

40  Victoria Smith 

41  Dion McVey 

42  Stuart Vine 

43  Ekenedilichukwu Edenjoku 

44  Quiana Wheatley 

45  Helen Osvalds 

46  Tasneem Anwar 

47  Vasile Cira 

48  Matthew James 

49  Rebecca graham 

50  Nick Osvalds 

51  Gareth Evans 

52  Tracy Evans 

53  Gemma Colyer 

54  Joshua Freeman 

55  Hayley Wright 

56  Catalina Barbu 

57  Jacob Pocklington 

58  Catherine Drury 

59  Mark Iyiola 

60  Bahadir Kaya 

61  Ismail Acar 

62  Daniel Harvey 

63  Matt Childs 

64  John English 

65  Ana Garbur 

66  Natalia Tester 

67  Diana Hayles 

68  Reshi Vadhia 

69  Alice Tabingwa 

70  Oscar Wady 

71  Robert Batten 

72  Jake Smith 

73  Kieran Gray 

74  Jason Atkins 

75  Oliver Wilmot 

76  Isabella Evans 

77  Diwi Banakeng 

78  Robert Bearup 

79  Jenny Kidd 

80  George Harrison 

5



81  Stanley Agabor 

82  David Asher 

83  Charlotte Johnson 

84  Lottie Cole 

85  Scott Welfare 

86  Tia Bancey 

87  Chiedza Kunyeda 

88  Kudzai Mukotekwa 

89  Lily Liston 

90  Alex Adesina 

91  Cam Connolly 

92  Andrej Lech 

93  Sarah lou Jones 

94  Emily Fletcher 

95  Michael Lam 

96  Erika Paltanaviciute 

97  Kinga Urbanowska 

98  Abbie Joslin 

99  Alicia-Leigh Williams 

100  Zane Ferrisa 

101  Jemma Cornford 

102  Amelia Evans 

103  Charlie mark Batten 

104  Siana Barden 

105  Jamieleigh Phillips 

106  Katie Epsley 

107  Avene Ahmad-Eldridge 

108  Shola Ajilore 

109  Andres Cardozo 

110  Okezi Imara 

111  Michael Churchill 

112  Wiktoria Pytlinska 

113  Rebecca Odunlami 

114  Holly Edwards 

115  Jack Cummings 

116  Gordon Newton 
 

These are attached as Appendix 5 

 
8.  Members are advised that they may only modify premises licences if it is appropriate 

and proportionate in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

Relevant sections of The Guidance issued under section 182 of The Licensing Act 
2003;   
 
Chapter 2 Licensing Objectives –Para 2.1 to 2.6 crime and disorder, para 2.7 to 
2.14 public safety and para 2.15 – 2. 21 public nuisance  
Chapter 10 Conditions attached to Premises Licences 

 Chapter 11  Reviews 

9. Relevant policy statements contained in The Licensing Authority’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy (Jan 2021); 

  

CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER.  6



17.10 Under the Act the Licensing Authority has a duty to promote the licensing objectives, and, a 
further duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent 
crime and disorder in the borough.   

17.11 Wholesale of alcohol. Since 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for 
  example, retailers of alcohol and trade buyers) need to ensure that the UK 

wholesalers that they buy alcohol from have been approved by HMRC under the 
Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS). They will need to check their 
wholesalers Unique Registration Number (URN) against the HMRC online database. 
This is an ongoing obligation and if a business is found to have bought alcohol from 
an unapproved wholesaler, they may be liable to a penalty or could even face a 
criminal prosecution and their alcohol stock may be seized. Any trader who buys 
alcohol from a wholesaler for onward sale to the general public (known as a ‘trade 
buyer’) does not need to register unless they sell alcohol to other businesses. 

 
17.12 Examples of trade buyers would be pubs, clubs, restaurants, cafes, retailers and 

hotels. However, they will need to check that the wholesaler they purchase alcohol 
from is registered with HMRC. 

 
17.13 The applicant will be expected to detail in their operating schedule how they will prevent  

crime and disorder on and close to the premises.  Such detail should reflect the licensable 
activities on offer, location and character of the area, the nature of the premises use and 
the range of customers likely to use the premises. 

These may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

•         Prevention of disorderly conduct and anti-social behaviour 

•         Prevention of underage drinking 

•         Prevention of sales of alcohol to intoxicated customers 

•         Prevention of drunkenness both on and in the vicinity of the premises 

•         Prevention of drug use and drug dealing 

•         Restriction to responsible drinks promotions 

•         Use of safety glass 

•         Inclusion of a wind-down time following alcohol sales period 

•         Adequate seating to discourage “vertical drinking” 

•         The offer of food and snacks or other entertainment or occupation to discourage 
persistent drinking 

17.14 In busier premises the Licensing Authority would usually expect to see a short (e.g.30 
mins)  ‘wind down’ or ‘drinking up’  period allowed for after the cessation time of 
entertainment and alcohol sales as this is effective in assisting in a reduction in noise and 
exuberance of customers before leaving the premises.  

17.15 Applicants will be expected to seek advice from the Police and the Licensing Authority will 
give appropriate weight to requests by the Police for premises to be protected by SIA 
registered door staff subject to the provision of relevant evidence. Where the Licensing 
Authority determines after consultation with the police that a premises is one that warrants 
additional security and monitoring it would expect applicants to include the provision of 
SIA approved door staff at the premises at appropriate times.  Relevant premises are 
usually those used mainly for drinking alcohol, have later opening hours and are situated 
within the Town Centre night time economy area.   7



17.16 Where appropriate, applicants for licences in the Town Centre areas providing mainly 
alcohol, music and dancing would be expected to consider  inclusion of  a provision of 
safety glasses to prevent a risk of injury on the rare occasion that a glass may be used as 
a weapon. 

17.17 The use of CCTV should be considered where appropriate or on the advice and 
recommendations of the Police and to a quality and standard approved by the Police for 
evidential  purposes.  Licensees will be expected to fully comply with the requirements of 
the Information Commissioners Office and the Data Protection Act 2018 & GDPR in 
respect of any surveillance equipment installed at a premises. 

17.18 In any application resulting in hearing  the sub-committee will consider each application on 
its individual merits and determine the imposition of conditions that are appropriate to 
promotion of  the licensing objectives. 
 
CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE PUBLIC SAFETY.   

 

17.19 The applicant will be expected to show how the physical safety of persons attending the 
premises will be protected and to offer any appropriate steps in the operating schedule to 
promote this. 

17.20 Such steps will not replace the statutory obligation on the applicant to comply with 
 all relevant legislation under the Health and Safety at Work etc.  Act 1973 or under 
 the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2004. 

17.21 Applicants will be expected to have carried out the necessary risk assessments to ensure 
safe occupancy levels for the premises.  Where a representation from the Fire Authority 
suggests that for the promotion of the Public Safety objective a maximum occupancy 
should be applied, the Licensing Authority will consider adding such a limit as a licence 
condition. 

Where appropriate an operating schedule should specify occupancy limits for the following 
types of licensed premises: 

(i) High Volume Vertical Drinking  e.g. premises that provide mainly stand up drinking 
facilities with limited seating/table space and the primary  activity is the sale of 
alcohol  

(ii) Nightclubs 

(iii) Cinemas 

(iv) Theatres 

(v) Other premises where regulated entertainment is likely to attract a large number    
of people. 

(vi)  Where conditions of occupancy have arisen due to representations received. 

 

CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE.   

17.22 The applicant will be expected to detail any appropriate and proportionate steps to prevent 
nuisance and disturbance arising from the licensable activities at the premises and from 
the customers using the premises. 

17.23 The applicant will be expected to demonstrate that they have considered the  following 
and included steps to prevent public nuisance: 

(i) Proximity of local residents to the premises 8



(ii) Licensable activities proposed and customer base 

(iii) Hours and nature of operation 

(iv) Risk and Prevention of noise leakage from the premises from equipment, 
customers and machinery 

(v) Prevention of noise from customers leaving the premises and customer pick up 
points outside premises and from the Car Park. 

(vi) Availability of public transport to and from the premises 

(vii) Delivery and collection times and locations. 

(viii) Impact of external security or general lighting on residents. 

(ix) History of management of and complaints about the premises. 

(x) Applicant’s previous success in preventing Public Nuisance. 

(xi) Outcomes of discussions with the relevant Responsible Authorities. 

(xii) Impact of location, noise and contamination from outside smoking areas on 
neighbours and other customers 

(xiii) Collection of litter arising from the premises 

17.24 Steps to prevent public nuisance may include a range of options including noise limiting 
devices, sound insulation, wind down periods, acoustic lobbies, management of smoking 
areas etc.  

17.25 Steps will differ depending on the individual premises and activities and it is for the 
applicant to ensure that reasonable, effective and appropriate steps are included within 
the operating schedule. 

 Implications Assessment 
 
10 The decision should be made with regard to the Home Office Guidance and the Licensing 

Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the 
decision departs from either the Guidance or the policy clear and cogent reasons must be 
given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal / 
challenge is increased. 

11 Human Rights: While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of 
particular relevance to the application are: 

• Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life 
• Article 1 of the First Protocol - Protection of Property 
• Article 6(1)- Right to Fair Hearing 
• Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 
 
The full text of each Article is given in the attached Appendices.  

 
Conclusion 

 
Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well as against the 
relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework. 

List of Appendices 

12 Appendix 1 Application for Review 
Appendix 2 Premises Licence 

9



 Appendix 3 Plan of the premises  
 Appendix 4 Plan of the area 
 Appendix 5 Other Parties –Support comments x 116 
 Appendix 6 Human Rights Article 
 Appendix 7 Order of Proceedings  

Appendix 8 Supplementary Disclosure – Part 2  
 
 
 
 
  
Appeal 

13.The applicant, any interested party and the licence holder may appeal the       
Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee’s decision within 21 days beginning with 
 the day on which the Appellant is notified. All\any appeals must be lodged with 
 the Magistrates’ Court.  

 
Contact: 
Email: 

 
Senior Licensing Officer 
lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 

10

mailto:lorraineneale@maidstone.gov.uk


OFFICIAL (when complete) 
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 1 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Chief Inspector Mark McLellan 
(Insert name of applicant)

 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 under of the Licensing Act 
2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  (delete as applicable) 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
ZOO BAR 
10-11 Market Buildings
Maidstone
Kent

Post town 
Maidstone 

Post code (if known)  
ME14 1HP 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 
Christopher DYER 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known) 

23/03511/LAPMV 

Part 2 – Applicant details 

I am 
Please tick yes 

1) an interested part (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of
the premises

2) a responsible authority (please complete ( C ) below)

Report Appendix 1

11



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 2 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

 
3 a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below) 
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in a applicable) 
 
Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title        
          (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 
             

 
        Please tick yes 
 

I am 18 years old or over       
 
Current postal 
address if 
different form 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
 
E-mail address (optional)       

 
 
 
 
(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 
 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      
E-mail address (optional) 
      

 
 
 
 
 

12



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 3 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT  
 
Kent Police 
Maidstone Police Station 
Palace Avenue 
Maidstone 
Kent Police 
ME15 6NF 

Telephone number (if any) 
07870157540 
E-mail address (optional) 
james.williams@kent.police.uk 

 
 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
        Please tick one or more boxes 
 

1)  the prevention of crime and disorder  
 

2)  public safety  
 

3)  the prevention of public nuisance  
 

4)  the protection of children from harm  
 
 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Kent Police are requesting a review of this premises licence under the licensing objectives 
of prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and the prevention of public nuisance at 
Zoo Bar. Mr Christopher DYER is the designated premises supervisor and premises licence 
holder. The premises trades as a night time venue. There is a premises licence which permits 
the sale of alcohol between 0900 to 0700 daily. 
 
There are regular incidents of concern at the venue which are outlined in detail below, these 
indicate both a lack of management control and a lack of consideration for the requirements 
of the Licensing Act 2003. The premises management have shown failures in upholding the 
licensing objectives, operating in breach of the premises licence as granted and a failure, or 
unwillingness, to take on board advice and guidance given due to previous incidents.  
 
Kent Police has attempted to work with the premises licence holder to discuss issues and 
propose changes to assist with the control and management of the venue, this has involved 

bringing concerns to their attention, providing advice on measures that if implemented 

13



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 4 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

would, if not prevent, certainly reduce the impact of incidents happening. There are a 
concerning number of times that the licensing objectives have not been promoted and the 
conditions on the premises licence have not been complied with.  
There have been multiple requests to update conditions on the licence for stronger controls 
and the proposal for reducing the hours of operation as it is clearly evidenced that the venue 
cannot prevent the number of issues arising in the early hours. The ongoing situation at the 
venue is clearly shown to be impacting beyond the boundaries of the licensed premises and 

having a detrimental effect on the town and those living and visiting the centre. 
 
The premises has become a focal point due to trading into the early hours and regularly 
contributes to the issues within the town as clearly demonstrated below and can be 
evidenced within this request for a review. The venue often requires police presence or 
multiple numbers of door staff in order to control it, the effect this has across the wider 
community can be significant and will be detrimental to sustaining the economic viability 
and regeneration and growth of the town.  
 
It is understood that venues within the night-time economy will have incidents due to the 
length of time that people may be exposed to the effects of alcohol, but it is how such 
incidents are dealt with that reduces the risk to crime and disorder, public safety, public 
nuisance and minimises the nuisance associated with these types of establishments.  
 
Mr DYER was reluctant to add some of the recommended police conditions as he believed 
it would impact on the day to day running and felt police conditions would restrict his 
business.   
 

Kent Police proposed the conditions as it was clear that the premises had become a main 
focal point due to the operating hours which lead to significant crime and disorder within 
the early hours of the morning. Kent Police asked that Mr Dyer reduce the operating hours 
to 03:00hrs but he expressed concerns of the significant impact on his business and would 
accept no new entries. He offered a condition that SIA door staff would move persons 
from the immediate area as per a condition he had seen on a previous review application 
accepted by the committee.  
Mr DYER introduced the following: 

14



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 5 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

• Cooling down period: We will operate a cooling down period of 15mins, prior to the 
end of session, where we will decrease sound levels to create a more calming 
atmosphere preparing us for close and full dispersal of patrons. 

 

• Body Worn cameras: The supply and use of body worn recording devices set to 
buffering mode and activated to record mode when an incident occurs. 

• SIA deployment on dispersal: To deploy 2 x SIA door supervisors to the High Street 
15mins prior to closing, with an additional 4 x SIA door supervisors to support and 
assist the dispersal process. 
 

• No New entries: There will be no new entries to the venue after 3am, excluding those 
that have been in the venue earlier. 

 

• Door Supervisors: The venue will only use SIA registered supervisors, no marshal’s 
will be used at the venue. 

 

• To modify an existing condition from: We will scan customers on a deemed risk basis 
from 03:00am. Smokers must remain in the designated smoking area at all times. 
 

• To: We will scan customers on a deemed risk basis until 03:00am. Smokers must 
remain in the designated smoking area at all times. 

 
Kent Police continued to work with Mr DYER and the venue but still it became a focal point 
for serious disorder and as Mr DYER is reluctant to reduce his operating hours it is strongly 
believed that the venue will remain a focal point in the future for Crime and Disorder. 
 
 
 
The venue has been issued numerous warnings about breaching its licence and continues 
to allow members of the public to enter after the times permitted by the premises licence 
conditions. The outside garden area allows members of the public to congregate where they 
persistently annoy staff and customers leading to issues. 
 

15



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 6 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

In summary Kent Police have found the following concerns arise from the premises. 
• Complaints made against SIA door staff for excessive force against patrons. 
• SIA door staff allowing patrons back in after causing a disturbance and allowing 

children into the venue by excepting IDs from the phone.  
• Multiple assaults and disorder throughout 2023. 
• Patrons intoxicated to point of collapse. 
• The operating hours to the early hours of the morning have caused most concern 

involving serious disorder within the High Street. 
 
Kent Police now believes that there is little alternative to requesting a review of the premises 
licence with the specific request of reducing the terminal hour for licensable activities and 
feel that midnight would be more appropriate given the control issues at the venue. 
However, should the committee feel that this is too detrimental to the business it is believed 
that the sale of alcohol should not be permitted past 00:00hrs and regulated entertainment 
would need to cease at 01:00hrs at latest. It is suggested that the current existing conditions 
remain in Annexe 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

16



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 7 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application 
On Sunday 1st of January 2023 around 03:14hrs Kent Police attended the venue as it was 
reported a male was on the floor with an eye injury currently in the recovery position. 
Officers arrested a marshal and two members of door staff who were alleged to have aided 
suspect, incident recorded as an assault GBH. (CCTV) APPENDIX 1 
Contact was made with Mr Dyer to discuss the incident on 1st January 2024 about staff 
obstructing attending Police Officers during the incident. Mr DYER stated that the officers 

were not obstructed and door staff assisted them in identifying suspects.  
 
On Sunday 29th of January 2023, Kent Police received a report that a customer was removed 
from the venue and was pinned to the floor by door staff, the customer believed that they 
had lost consciousness during the incident. Following this incident the venue was contacted 
and a request for footage from the premises CCTV system was requested. CCTV APPENDIX 
2 
 
Sunday 26th February 2023 around 03:31hrs Kent Police received a call. The incident 
involved a group of females fighting and were broken up by door staff. It was reported later 
that one of the groups cut another with unknown object. CCTV APPENDIX 3 
 
On Tuesday 28th of February 2023 following a report of an assault made directly to police 
by a victim, PC WILLIAMS emailed Mr DYER requesting CCTV footage for the incident that 
is alleged to have occurred within the venue on Sunday 12th of February 2023. The incident 
involved a patron being attacked by another patron within the club.  
 
On Sunday 12th March 2023 around 00:46hrs Police Officers were on foot patrol within 

Market Buildings, as they were engaging with members of the public they were made aware 
of a disturbance inside the premises, this resulted in an altercation between patrons and 
door staff taking place. The Police Officers had to request backup from other officers to 
attend the venue due to the ongoing disturbance. Four males were detained and arrested. 
CCTV footage was subsequently requested the following day by PC Williams and was 
provided by Mr Dyer. CCTV APPENDIX 4. On the same evening a report was received from 
the ambulance service that they had received a call from a male stating that they had been 

17



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 8 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

assaulted whilst in the venue resulting in an eye injury. The male left prior to their 
attendance and was at home. 20230312-0249 
 
On Tuesday 14th of March 2023 Mr DYER was issued a Breach of warning letter for failing 
to attend night time economy meetings as per their licence condition which he had been 
previously advised was a requirement of the conditions on his premises licence. APPENDIX 
5  

 
On Saturday 18th March 2023 between 01:50hrs and 04:43hrs Maidstone CCTV Control 
contacted Kent Police on four occasions for incidents including patrons throwing a bottle, a 
male with a knife, a request for assistance from staff at the venue and disturbances. These 
calls resulted in police officers attending multiple times with one male arrested for drug 
possession and groups being dispersed away from the location. The venue was subsequently 
contacted in relation to these incidents and CCTV was requested for the period in question. 
CCTV APPENDIX 6 
 
On Saturday 25th March 2023, round 04:15hrs A member of public reported they were 
punched and bitten on the neck by another patron. Door staff have become involved and 
removed those involved. CCTV was subsequently requested from the venue in relation to 
this incident which was provided. CCTV APPENDIX 7 
 
On Wednesday 5th of April 2023, Mr DYER attended Maidstone Police Station for a meeting 
with PS SHORT and PC WILLIAMS, during the meeting the high number of calls made in 
relation to the venue. The meeting was positive in moving forward in relation to working 
with Local Authorities and supporting the night-time economy, Mr Dyer indicated that he 

understood the concerns that the venue was becoming a focal point for issues and that he 
needed to address this. He gave an undertaking to use the Maidsafe Radio more and to 
report issues at the venue directly to police. 
 
On Saturday 22nd of April 2023 around 02:52hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control contacted Kent 
Police to report a fight at the venue between door staff and members of the public. Door 
staff managed to disperse persons involved. 
 

18



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 9 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

Sunday 23rd April 2023 around 04:16hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control contacted Kent Police and 
reported members of staff from venue chasing a male in the bus centre. The male was 
detained and taken to the floor by staff and was kicked multiple times. The members of 
staff then walk away leaving the male, clearly injured, on the floor. CCTV APPENDIX 8 
 
On Tuesday 25th April 2023 PC WILLIAMS attended the venue and spoke to Mr DYER in 
relation to members of staff attacking a member of public in the bus station on Sunday 23rd 

of April. Mr DYER identified persons who were his staff and identified the main aggressor as 
the promotor who generally handed out flyers. Mr Dyer stated that he would take a positive 
stance and understood the implications for the reputation of his venue and gave an 
undertaking that the promotor involved would not continue to work at the premises. 
 
On Sunday 21st May 2023 around 05:17hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control reported a large group 
on the High Street that were fighting. Group has just come from the venue and door staff 
from the venue were present. 
 
On Sunday 28th of May 2023, around 02:20hrs a number of patrons are ejected from the 
venue by door staff over a period of a few minutes, a disturbance then takes place directly 
outside whereby one of the removed patrons attacks a marshal on duty at the venue. The 
patron is restrained by the marshal, and both fall to the ground at which point the patron is 
kicked by another marshal from the venue, the patron is subjected to a number of punches 
from the marshal that is on the floor with him.  CCTV APPENDIX 9 
On Tuesday 30th of May 2023 PC WILLIAMS contacted Mr DYER in relation to the above 
incident involving the marshals and also about a report from CCTV Control of their customers 
entering the High Street causing a disturbance and clearly seen with nitrous oxide balloons. 

This was followed up with an email on the 7th of June to Mr DYER in relation to the incident, 
PC WILLIAMS explained to Mr DYER his concerns around the marshal punching the patron 
numerous times whilst on the floor and another marshal/door staff being seen to kick them. 
In response Mr DYER explained that the marshal struck the patron numerous times because 
the patron was holding onto him and would not let go causing him injury. A request was 
made to Mr DYER that should his staff detain a person and call for police and they are 
advised that patrols are on route then that person should be kept at the venue, also for his 
to use the town radio issued to them in order to maintain communication with control 

19



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 10 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

throughout the incident. Mr DYER was informed that a complaint had been made about him 
using Marshals that were acting as SIA badge holders. It was explained to Mr DYER under 
the SIA legislation what was not allowed and that he should use SIA. 
 
On Sunday 4th of June 2023 around 03:03hrs Maidstone CCTV Control reported door staff 
from the venue being assaulted and that they had a member of the public detained at the 
location. Police attended and the door staff had released the male prior to their arrival, no 

details of the male were obtained and no follow up action possible as a result.  
 
On Friday 9th of June, PC WILLIAMS attended the venue and spoke to the marshal that 
had been assaulted by a member of public on Sunday 28th of May, the marshal was not on 
duty at point of visit. 
 
On Saturday 10th June, PC WILLIAMS attended the venue and had a meeting with Mr 
DYER and the marshal about being involved when not licensed to do so under SIA. It was 
explained the again what limited duties marshals may perform and what SIA registered 
door staff cover. The marshal showed images of his injures which were consistent with 
being pinched multiple times.  
 
On Saturday 10th of June at around 03:30hrs, Kent Police received a call in relation to a 
disturbance which could be heard in the background of the 999 call. The venue ejected 
males from the venue due to them causing issues. One of the males had pushed himself 
away from staff which caused him to trip and injure his head.  
 
On Sunday 18th of June 2023 around 04:00hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed a group 

of aggressive males at the venue. The group moved away from the venue and were 
monitored. At around 04:06hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control contacted Kent Police for an 
ongoing disturbance at the venue involving this group of males, group eventually dispersed 
without intervention. 
 
On Monday 19th of June 2023 PC WILLIAMS contacted Mr DYER about the disturbance 
around 04:05hrs and what had occurred at the venue, Mr DYER stated that he had been 
unaware of the further disturbance involving his patrons. It was noted when viewing footage 

20



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 11 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

for this incident that the marquee outside the premises partially obscures the line of sight 
of the Town Centre CCTV camera. 
 
On Saturday 24th of June 2023 around 02:58hrs, the venue contacted Maidstone CCTV 
Control and asked for police to attend as they detained a male for attacking door staff. 
Venue advised to call '999', there is no record of any further request for police attendance. 
At around 04:04hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control reported that they had witnessed a large fight 

involving 15 persons. Police attended the location upon arrival the groups had stopped 
fighting and had gone their separate ways.  
 
On Saturday 8th of July around 03:03hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed an aggressive 
male having a go at door staff. The male was detained until police arrived who then dealt 
with the male, details of the male were recorded, no offences progressed as a result of the 
incident 
 
On Sunday 9th of July around 03:10hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed a large fight 
break out at the venue and persons made off. Police attended and persons involved were 
spoken to. CCTV APPENDIX 10 At around 04:50hrs the Venue reported to Maidstone CCTV 
Control that a male had turned up at the premises with a baseball bat, this male had 
previously been ejected and made threats to return, door staff removed the bat from the 
male and he left the location. Whilst that was ongoing CCTV Control noticed a group of 
approx 15 persons becoming agitated and believed this may escalate into a fight, premises 
staff advised them they were being watched and the situation calmed down.  
 
On Saturday 15th of July 2023 around 03:58hrs, a member of the public reported that her 

cousin had been attacked by door staff, kicked and punched. Male conveyed to hospital by 
Police, concern re facial injuries. CCTV APPENDIX 11  
 
On Monday 18th of July 2023, Mr DYER was contacted by PC WILLIAMS in relation to the 
incident on Saturday 15th of July requesting footage for the assault. A member of door staff 
is seen to punch a patron in the head and then another is seen to remove a phone from a 
female that was filming the incident. Mr DYER informed that the person who took the phone 
was an off duty doorman from another venue. 

21



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 12 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

On Friday 21st of July, PC WILLIAMS attended the venue and spoke with a member of door 
staff in relation to their actions of punching the patron in the head. They were advised to 
act within a professional capacity when dealing with difficult members of the public. The 
member of door staff explained their conduct in relation the patron and that they were being 
racially abused. The member of door staff was suitable advised and that they should 
continue to act within a professional capacity. 
 

On Sunday 23rd July – PC WILLIAMS was reviewing CCTV cameras and whilst reviewing 
observed a male handing out flyers. The male that was handing out flyers was the same 
male involved in a nasty attack on 23/04 who had been employed by the venue as a 
promotor. It had been previously discussed that the venue should distance themselves from 
association with the male and they had assured PC WILLIAMS that the male had left their 
employment. PC WILLIAMS contacted Mr DYER in relation to this and was informed that 
this was a mistake and he had been put on the roster by another employee. 
 
On Sunday 30th of July around 03:38hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed an altercation 
at the venue involving males that were separated by staff. At around 04:41hrs, a member 
of the public called Kent Police and reported they heard a metal object hit the floor. A 
disturbance took place within the street and multiple persons had their tops off and 
mentioned there had been a stabbing. Door staff from the premises were trying to deal with 
the incident. Police attended and appeared no stabbing had taken place and no persons 
located with any injuries. Around 04:45hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control further witnessed a 
fight in Jubilee Square. Police attended and arrested a male for assault ABH. CCTV 
APPENDIX - Body worn APPENDIX 12.  
 

On Monday 31st of July 2023, PC WILLIAMS sent a letter to Mr DYER informing him that 
despite the minor variation having been completed with the extra conditions being added 
the premises was still clearly experiencing significant issues and suggesting a variation to 
the premises licence to reduce the terminal hour to 03:00hrs due to the number of incidents 
around, or after, this time. APPENDIX 13  
 
On Friday 4th of August 2023, PC WILLIAMS attended the venue for a meeting with Mr DYER 
and the premises manager in relation to the number of issues and ongoing concerns about 

22



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 13 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

the venue around crime and disorder. It was agreed that a minor variation be submitted but 
Mr DYER was not willing to consider a reduction in  hours after being informed 03:00hrs 
onwards were the areas of concern for disorder within the town coming from the venue.  
 
On Sunday 6th of August around 03:12hrs, a call was made to Kent Police that some  
males had returned to the venue that police had removed earlier. They had turned up 
wearing balaclavas and caller believed they may have weapons. The males continued to 

come back and forth towards the venue whilst making threats towards the venue and staff 
including that they would return with weapons and firearms. Police attended but on arrival 
the males had run off and were not located. 
Again, on Sunday 6th of August at around 04:35hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed the 
venue disperse a group of males who subsequently became involved in an altercation that 
took place within the High Street. 
 
On Sunday 13th of August 2023 around 03:21hrs, a call was received from a member of the 
public that the venue had removed persons causing issues and that about 20 people were 
around a male on the floor. Police attended the area and dispersed the group that were 
causing issues, no identified victims of crime.  
 
On Tuesday 29th of August 2023, Mr DYER was contacted to see when he would be 
submitting the previously discussed minor variation. 
 
On Saturday 2nd of September 2023 around 04:35hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control contacted 
Kent Police on behalf of the venue stating that a male who was asked to leave earlier due 
to their drunkenness made threats that “they would get their boys”. Male returned wearing 

a hood with his face obscured and staff had detained him. Police attended and the male 
was arrested for public order offences. CCTV APPENDIX 14 
 
On Sunday 10th of September 2023 at around 02:54hrs, Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed 
door staff remove a male from the venue and they were seen to punch the male three times 
causing him to fall to the floor. At around 03:40hrs, Police Officers on duty in the town 
centre call for a van to the location as a male had caused damage within the venue by 
throwing a speaker to the floor. CCTV APPENDIX 15 

23



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 14 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

On Tuesday 12th of September 2023, Mr DYER was contacted for CCTV in relation to door 
staff punching a patron three times. Mr DYER explained that the member of door staff was 
held around the throat, and he struck the patron three times which caused him to let go. 
During this meeting it was also raised about door staff from venue becoming involved in an 
incident in the High Street, Mr DYER understood that his staff were finished and had nothing 
to do with the venue at the time of the incident but that he would speak to the staff involved. 
Whist reviewing footage for the incidents that occurred on 10th of September it was noted 

that at around 02:10hrs a patron was a assaulted during a disturbance at the venue, there 
is not record of this assault having been reported to police. After this meeting took place Mr 
DYER submitted the previously discussed, and awaited, minor variation to add new 
conditions to his premises licence.  
 
On Sunday 17th of September 2023 around 03:16hrs, a member of the public reported a 
male trying to have a go at someone in the venue. Police attended and appeared to be two 
families having a dispute. Police split the groups up and they went their separate ways 
without further issue. 
 
On Saturday 23rd of September 2023 around 01:45hrs, a call was made to Kent Police that 
a male had been hit over the head, whilst call in progress a patrol arrived at the location 
and dealt with the incident, details were recorded and persons left the area. CCTV APPENDIX 
16 
 
On Sunday 24th of September 2023, a member of public reported their son had been 
removed forcefully from the premises by a security guard and once outside, the security 
staff held his arms and pushed him before punching him in the face causing a laceration to 

his mouth which required plastic surgery. A report of assault GBH has been recorded and is 
under investigation, details have been referred to the SIA due to the door staff involvement. 
Review of CCTV showed that the incident took place at 04:08hrs. 
CCTV APPENDIX 17 
 
On Sunday 1st of October around 0234hrs, the venue reported to Maidstone CCTV Control 
that they had 2 aggressive females who assaulted staff and manager, police attended and 
recorded details for crime report for common assault. CCTV APPENDIX 18 

24



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 15 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

On Sunday 8th of October around 02:02hrs, Kent Police received a call from the manager of 
venue stating that a customer had become annoyed and struck them across the face, 
security staff detained the male customer. Police arrived and arrested the male for assault. 
CCTV APPENDIX 19 
 
On Saturday 14th of October around 00:28hrs, Kent Police received a call from management 
that a patron had been detained following assaulting a member of door staff. The patron 

had been dancing on dancefloor inside venue and seen repeatedly taking his shirt off and 
pretending to fight with other patrons, while being ejected from the venue they punched a 
member of door staff. Police attended and arrested the patron for assault. CCTV APPENDIX 
20 
 
On Saturday 4th of November 2023, around 02:20hrs Maidstone CCTV Control witnessed a 
fight break out outside the venue. Police attended and the group involved ran off. A further 
call was received from a member of the public at 02:22hrs reporting a group that had moved 
on after causing incident near venue CCTV APPENDIX 21 
 
On Monday 13th of November 2023, PC WILLIAMS sent an email to Mr DYER to request 
footage of male seen on floor outside the venue on Sunday 12th of November, this incident 
had been observed whilst conducting a review of Town Centre CCTV footage for an 
unrelated incident. Mr DYER sent the requested footage which showed a male jumping the 
barriers at 03:43hrs and was then ejected by door staff. As the male was being ejected, he 
crashed through a barrier and hit his head against the wall. The member of door staff has 
then used his legs to nudge the male away from the area. A SIA referral was submitted in 
relation to the incident and a breach of licence warning letter (APPENDIX 22) issued for SIA 

door staff not wearing ID CCTV APPENDIX 23 
 
On Tuesday 21st November 2023, PC WILLIAMS reviewed Maidstone CCTV for the weekend 
due to a serious disorder at the venue on Sunday 19th of November. During the review of 
footage at 01:01hrs a group of female patrons were taken out and once outside a fight 
takes place which a member of door staff separates. One female is sent on her way and the 
main aggressor is allowed back into the venue. At around 01:57hrs a female member of the 
public sneaks into the venue unchecked and unchallenged. At around 01:58hrs a male 

25



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 16 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

patron is removed from the premises and is seen multiple times to come back and forth 
with another male. The male who was ejected gets into an argument with management 
which leads to assaults and then other patrons getting involved throwing drinks and glasses. 
Various garden ornaments, including a metal flamingo, are used as weapons. The males 
leave the area and return just after 02:00hrs brandishing a hammer and wheel nut wrench. 
The two males make numerous threats and are deterred by door staff. During the altercation 
patrons begin throwing items which are challenged by door staff. CCTV APPENDIX 24 

Mr DYER was contacted in relation to the incidents that occurred at the venue on Sunday 
19th of November 2023.  MR DYER stated that, in his opinion, the venue staff handled the 
situation well considering the males armed themselves with weapons and confirmed that 
the ejected male was removed to safeguard a female within the venue. MR DYER was asked 
to have more control of patrons when dealing with incidents as those outside appeared to 
escalate the disorder by using the garden furniture and items such as ashtrays to throw at 
the staff and others in the area. 
 
On Friday 1st of December 2023, PC WILLIAMS reviewed Maidstone CCTV for Sunday 26th 
of November. At around 02:55hrs a female appeared to cause a disturbance with door staff 
and was then carried off by her hands and feet. The female was left on the street and was 
clearly under the influence of drink or drugs. She eventually wandered off unsteady on her 
feet and was clearly vulnerable. The female then wanders down the High Street and lays in 
front of traffic.  CCTV APPENDIX 25 The venue was issued a Warning letter around sale of 
alcohol to a drunk person. APPENDIX 26 Mr DYER was contacted in relation to this incident 
and about door staff from other venues getting involved at his premises. 
 
On Thursday 7th of December 2023, PC WILLIAMS contacted Mr DYER following receipt of 

information that the manager had been assaulted at the venue and pushed a female to the 
ground on Saturday 2nd of December, and a request was made to provide CCTV footage of 
the incident. A review of the footage shows that the female is escorted out by a member of 
door staff and appears under the influence of drink or drugs. As she is escorted out, she 
pushes a manager who then pushes the female off who falls to the ground. CCTV APPENDIX 
27. 
Following this review of footage a warning letter was issued to the venue for breach of 
premises as a member of door staff was clearly identified on duty without displaying their 

26



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 17 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

SIA badge as required by the conditions of the premises, the letter also gave advice around 
selling alcohol to a person who was already drunk. This letter was sent to the venue on the 
13th November. APPENDIX 28 
 
On Tuesday 12th of December 2023, Mr DYER was contacted in relation to CCTV footage in 
relation to a male who assaulted Mr DYER and was causing issues at the venue on Sunday 
26th of November 2023 following request from the officer investigating this assault. CCTV 

APPENDIX 29  
 
On Sunday 17th of December 2023, three calls were made to Kent Police. The first call made 
around 04:02hrs was from a member of the public reporting that they had paid to enter and 
were assaulted by staff and thrown out. The second incident occurred at 04:16hrs which 
police attended, and persons involved had stopped fighting. Then at 05:27hrs a male was 
restrained who had been fighting in the High Street. Police attended and all persons involved 
went their separate ways. 
 
On Tuesday 19th of December 2023, PC WILLIAMS reviewed CCTV in relation to a couple of 
disturbances that were reported. During the review of the footage a collapsed female is 
seen to be carried out who needs serious medical care. Whilst this incident takes place the 
venue allows members of the public to enter from 04:03hrs which is a breach their licence 
condition. The members of public come from another venue prior to entering. Some of the 
persons that were allowed entry have later been involved in the disturbance at 05:27hrs 
within High Street.  CCTV APPENDIX 30 
 

 
 

27



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 18 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

          Please tick yes 
 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before   
 
If yes  please state the date of that application 
        Day     Month  Year 

        

 
 

 Please tick yes 
 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the 

responsible authorities and the premises licence holder or 
club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above 
requirements my application will be rejected 

 

 
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE 
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FLASE 
STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent  
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 
 
Signature James Williams 
 
 
Date 27/02/2024 
 
Capacity 
 
Kent Police Licensing Officer  
 
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

28



OFFICIAL (when complete) 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises  
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Kent Police : Partnership & Crime Reduction 

Form No. 3489a rev Sep 07 [erev 1/08] v1 Policy M114 19 
OFFICIAL (when complete) 

 

Post town       Post code       

Telephone number (if any)       
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e mail address your e mail 
address  (optional) 

      
 
Notes for Guidance 
 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which 

are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

29



  

Protecting and serving the people of Kent 

APPENDIX 5 
 

 

Maidstone Police Station, Palace Avenue, Maidstone, Kent ME15 6NF 
Tel: 101 www.kent.police.uk 

This is available in 
large print on request  

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 5/08 v5.1 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

a 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 5

.d
oc

x 

PC 11187 WILLIAMS 
Police Licensing Officer 

Maidstone 
West Division 

 

E-m

 

Date:  14/03/2023 

Ref:        

Dear Mr DYER 
 
RE: Zoo Bar, Maidstone 
 
On Thursday 9th March 2023, I attended the night-time economy meeting forum along with various 
members and venues. 
The night-time economy forum was setup to address members concerns, issues and positives in 
making the town a safer place.  This forum was also to bring partnership working together 
involving Kent Police, Maidstone Borough Council, OneMaidstone, volunteers including Urban Blue 
and street pasters. 
 
I have been in attendance to all the 2022 forums and the current 2023. At no stage have you or a 
representative attended the forums. 
 
The following conditions are present and must be complied with at all times that licensable 
activities are taking place authorised by the premises licence. 
 

• A representative of the Premises Licence Holder will actively participate in the 
Nite Net radio system and will also be a member of the Night Time Economy 
Forum attending on average 4 meetings a year and ensuring that a record is 
kept to establish that those minutes have been read and as necessary actioned. 

 
Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 details unauthorised licensable activities. 

30



 

 
 

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 12/05 v2 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

a 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 5

.d
oc

x 

 
Licensable activities must not take place unless all conditions are being adhered to, failure to 
comply at all times will constitute a breach of your premises licence. 
 
On this occasion a record will be made and should this occur again a form of prosecution may take 
place or an application may be made to review your premises licence.  
If you have any further questions in relation to this visit please do not hesitate in contacting 
myself. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
PC 11187 James WILLIAMS 
Licensing Officer 

31



  

Protecting and serving the people of Kent 

APPENDIX 13 
 

 

Maidstone Police Station, Palace Avenue, Maidstone, Kent ME15 6NF 
Tel: 101 www.kent.police.uk 

This is available in 
large print on request  

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 5/08 v5.1 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

b 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 1

3.
do

cx
 

PC 11187 WILLIAMS 
Strategic Prevention Command 

Licensing Hub 
 
 
 

E-mai

Date:  31/07/2023 
Ref:        

 
RE: Zoo Bar, Maidstone 
 
Dear Mr DYER 
 
I have worked closely with yourself and your venue with the aim of reducing incidents of 
crime and disorder connected to your venue. Over this time we have addressed areas of 
concern especially after a serious GBH where a member of public was glassed causing 
their ear to hang off on New Years Day 2022. Due to this serious assault, you submitted a 
minor variation via my recommendations in order to promote the licensing objectives, the 
implemented measures included further security/marshals and how glassware is supplied 
and collected. 
However, since you implemented the changes, the venue has continued to experience 

incidents of disorder which seem to happen after 03:00hrs. I am aware that your staff try 
to deal with the incidents however this now seems to be becoming more frequent with the 
latest incident being Sunday 30th July 2023 which involved a large group of males fighting 
in the High Street.  
  
As a premises licence holder, you have a duty to promote the licensing objectives.  

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
• Public Safety 

• Public nuisance 
• Protect children from harm 

 
Given the work already undertaken and the ongoing incidents I feel that it is necessary to 
implement further measures and believe the only viable option would be a reduction in the 

32



 

 
 

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 12/05 v2 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

b 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 1

3.
do

cx
 

hours for licensable activities. In order to meet this I would like to see an application for a 
minor variation to reduce your licensed activities to 09:00hrs to 03:00hrs. 
 
Should further such incidents occur at your venue without interventions being put in place 
then Kent Police may seek to review the premises licence in order to ensure that the 
venue is promoting the licensing objectives as required by the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
If you have any further questions in relation to the content of this letter please do not 
hesitate in contacting myself. 
 
 
Regards, 
 
 

PC 11187 James WILLIAMS 
Strategic Prevention Command 
Licensing Hub 

 
 

33



  

Protecting and serving the people of Kent 

APPENDIX 22 
 

 

Maidstone Police Station, Palace Avenue, Maidstone, Kent ME15 6NF 
Tel: 101 www.kent.police.uk 

This is available in 
large print on request  

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 5/08 v5.1 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

c 
Ap

pe
nd

x 
22

.d
oc

x 

PC 11187 WILLIAMS 
Strategic Prevention Command 

Licensing Hub 
 

E-ma

 

Date:  //2023 

Ref:        

Dear Mr DYER 
 
RE: Zoo, Maidstone 
 
On Tuesday 14th of November 2023, I asked you to provide CCTV footage in relation to an 
incident that occurred on Sunday 12th of November at your premises. The incident was in 
relation to a member of the public laying on the floor. I reviewed the CCTV footage you 
sent, and the member of public is ejected from the venue whereby he falls over the gate 

and his head collides with the wall. I observed the member of door staff was not wearing 
any reflective armband that would clearly identify them. 
 
The following conditions are present and must be complied with at all times that 
licensable activities are taking place authorised by the premises licence. 
 

• All security staff will display their name badges by way of a reflective 
armband. 

 
Licensable activities must not take place unless all conditions are being adhered to, failure 
to comply at all times will constitute a breach of your premises licence. 
 
On this occasion a record will be made and should this occur again a form of prosecution 
may take place or an application may be made to review your premises licence.  

34



 

 
 

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 12/05 v2 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

c 
Ap

pe
nd

x 
22

.d
oc

x 

If you have any further questions in relation to this visit please do not hesitate in 
contacting myself. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
PC 11187 James WILLIAMS 
Licensing Hub 

35



  

Protecting and serving the people of Kent 

APPENDIX 26 
 

 

Maidstone Police Station, Palace Avenue, Maidstone, Kent ME15 6NF 
Tel: 101 www.kent.police.uk 

This is available in 
large print on request  

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 5/08 v5.1 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

d 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 2

6.
do

cx
 

PC 11187 WILLIAMS 
Strategic Prevention Command 

 

E

Date:  08/12/2023 

Ref:        

Dear Mr DYER 
 

RE: Zoo, Maidstone 
 
On Friday 1st December 2023, I was viewing CCTV in relation to incidents over the 
weekend of 26th of November. I saw an incident with a female around 02:55hrs at your 
venue. The female appeared to cause a disturbance with door staff and was then carried 
off by her hands and feet. The female was left on the street and was clearly under the 
influence of drink or drugs. She eventually wondered off unsteady on her feet and was 
clearly vulnerable. The female then wonders down the high street and lays in front of 
traffic.   
The venue has a duty to safeguard customers and call for medical attention even if they 
decline. As you can appreciate this female was vulnerable, anything could have occurred 
putting her safety at risk. As soon as the female was off your premises it took members of 
the public to step in, to assist.   
 
It is an offence under Section 141 of the Licensing Act 2003 to sell or attempt to sell 
alcohol to a person who is drunk, or allow alcohol to be sold to such a person. 

 
On this occasion a record will be made and should this occur again a form of prosecution 
may take place or an application may be made to review your premises licence.  
If you have any further questions in relation to this visit please do not hesitate in 
contacting myself. 

36



 

 
 

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 12/05 v2 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

d 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 2

6.
do

cx
 

 
Regards, 
 
 
PC 11187 James WILLIAMS 
Licensing Hub 

37



  

Protecting and serving the people of Kent 

APPENDIX 28 
 

 

Maidstone Police Station, Palace Avenue, Maidstone, Kent ME15 6NF 
Tel: 101 www.kent.police.uk 

This is available in 
large print on request  

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 5/08 v5.1 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

e 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 2

8.
do

cx
 

PC 11187 WILLIAMS 
Strategic Prevention Command 

Licensing Hub 
Mr Christopher Dyer   

 

 

Date:  13/12/2023 

Ref:        

Dear Mr DYER 
 
RE: Zoo, Maidstone 
 
On Thursday 7th of December 2023, I asked you to provide CCTV footage in relation to an 
incident that occurred on Saturday 2nd of December at your premises. The incident was in 
relation to a customer assaulting a member of staff. I reviewed the CCTV footage you 
sent, the customer appears under the influence of drink or drugs and is ushered away by 
a member of door staff.  
 

• It is an offence under Section 141 of the Licensing Act 2003 to sell or attempt to 
sell alcohol to a person who is drunk, or allow alcohol to be sold to such a 
person. 

•  

The manager then becomes involved and is pushed by the customer and then the 
manager pushes the customer back causing her to fall to the group.  
I observed that the member of door staff was not wearing any reflective armband that 
would clearly identify them. 
 
The following conditions are present and must be complied with at all times that 
licensable activities are taking place authorised by the premises licence. 
 

38



 

 
 

  Kent Police : Form No. 3058c rev 12/05 v2 

W
:\

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
\L

ic
en

sin
g 

Su
b 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 - 

He
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

s\
1.

 R
EV

IE
W

S\
20

24
 R

ev
ie

w
s\

Re
po

rt 
an

d 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

\R
ep

or
t -

 P
ar

t 1
\1

e 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 2

8.
do

cx
 

• All security staff will display their name badges by way of a reflective 
armband. 

 
Licensable activities must not take place unless all conditions are being adhered to, failure 
to comply at all times will constitute a breach of your premises licence. 
 
On this occasion a record will be made and should this occur again a form of prosecution 
may take place or an application may be made to review your premises licence.  
If you have any further questions in relation to this visit please do not hesitate in 
contacting myself. 
 

Regards, 
 
 
PC 11187 James WILLIAMS 
Licensing Hub 

39



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 1 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023 

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

PREMISES LICENCE 

The Licensing Act 2003 

Schedule 12, Part A 

Premises Licence Number 23/03511/LAPMV 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

Postal address of premises , or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post 

Town & Post Code  

The Zoo 

10 - 11 Market Buildings 

Maidstone 

Kent.  ME14 1HP 

Telephone number  01622 609330 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not Applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Films 

Live music 

Recorded music 

Performances of dance 

Anything of a similar description to the activities of live music, recorded music or the performance of 

dance 

Sale or Supply of Alcohol 

Late Night Refreshment 

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Films (Indoors) 

Every Day 09:00 - 07:00 

Live music (Both Indoors and Outdoors) 

Every Day 09:00 - 07:00 

The outside area is subject to deregulation from Sunday -Thursday as the terminal hour will be 23:00 
but on Friday and Saturday regulated live music will be provided between 23:00 and 1.00 daily. 

Recorded music (Both Indoors and Outdoors) 

Every Day 09:00 - 07:00 

The outside area is subject to deregulation from Sunday -Thursday as the terminal hour will be 23:00 
but on Friday and Saturday regulated recorded music will be provided between 23:00 and 1.00 daily. 

REPORT APPENDIX 2

40



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 2 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

Performances of dance (Indoors) 
   

 Every Day 09:00 - 07:00 

 

 
Anything of a similar description to the activities of live music, recorded music or the performance of 

dance (Indoors) 
   

 Every Day 09:00 - 07:00 

 

 
Sale or Supply of Alcohol  
   

 Every Day 09:00 - 07:00 

 

 
Late Night Refreshment (Both Indoors and Outdoors) 
   

 Every Day 23:00 - 07:00 

 

 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises 
  

Every day 09:00 - 07:00 
  

 

The non-standard opening hours of the premises 

Not applicable 
 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies 

Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the premises. 
 

 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email address (where relevant) of holder of 

premises licence 

 

Mr Christopher Dyer 

10 - 11 Market Buildings 

Maidstone 

Kent.  ME14 1HP 

 

Email address 
 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

Registered Business Number 06478246 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 

authorises for the supply of alcohol 

Mr Christopher Dyer 

 

 

 

 

 

41



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 3 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 

supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
  

Licence Number: WK/200812907 

Licence Authority: Maidstone Borough Council  
 

 
John Littlemore 

Head of Housing and Community Services 

Maidstone Borough Council 

 

42



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 4 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

 

The supply of alcohol 

 

 - Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following 

conditions:- 

 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

 

(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, 

or 

 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 

personal licence is suspended. 

 

 - Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 

 

Mandatory conditions in force from 28 May 2014 

 

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1- 

 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979 

 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula—  P= D + (D x V) 

 

where -  

          (i) P is the permitted price, 

          (ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 

on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  

          (iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 

added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply  of the alcohol; 

 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises 

licence - 

 

          (i) the holder of the premises licence, 

          (ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 

          (iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence; 

 

(d)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 

premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which 

enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 

1994. 

 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) 

not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price 

actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 

43



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 5 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

4. - (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a 

day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a 

result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

      (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol 

which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

 

Mandatory Conditions in force from 01 October 2014 

 

1      (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange 

or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  

 

        (2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, 

or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol 

for consumption on the premises—  

 

                    (a)games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to— 

                              (i)drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 

authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

                              (ii)drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

 

                    (b)provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted 

fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a 

significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

                    (c)provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which 

carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

                    (d)selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-

social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 

                    (e)dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

 

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 

where it is reasonably available.  

 

3      (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

 

        (2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 

supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  

 

        (3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years 

of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—  

 

                    (a)a holographic mark, or 

 

                    (b)an ultraviolet feature. 

 

4. The responsible person must ensure that—  

 

44



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 6 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

                    (a)where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale 

or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

 

                              (i)beer or cider: ½ pint; 

                              (ii)gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

                              (iii)still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 

                    (b)these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 

available to customers on the premises; and 

 

                    (c)where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 

to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available." 

 

Exhibition of films 

 

 - Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3) (b) applies, 

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that body. 

 

 -  Where - 

 

(a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or  

(b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies 

to the film in question,  

 

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 

licensing authority. 

 

In this section - 

 

"children" means person aged under 18; and  

"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of 

the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for 

classification). 

 

Door supervision 

 

 - Any premises which includes a condition that door supervisors must be at the premises to carry out a 

security activity, shall ensure that each such person is licensed to conduct such activities by the 

Security Industry Authority. 

 

Annex 2 – Embedded conditions 

 

Not applicable 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 

CCTV to be fitted to a standard agreed to by the police that complies with the CCTV Code of Practice 

(2008 Edition) produced by the information Commissioners Office, with all public areas, including all 

access and egress points covered.  This is also to include any exit doors, alleyways or any other areas 

used for the ejection of customers. 

 

The CCTV system will be maintained and serviced on a regular basis and records kept to that effect. 

 

CCTV shall be operational at all times that members of the public and/or staff are on the premises.  

 

45



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 7 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

Images will be retained for a period of at least one calendar month by whatever means the licence 

holder deems appropriate.  

 

The Police or Local Licensing Authority will have access to these images at any reasonable time and in 

any case within 48hrs of the request for the image being made. 

 

The Police or local Authority will be allowed to take a recording by way of tape, CD Rom or any other 

means of the image within 24hrs of the initial request being made by either the Police or Local 

Licensing Authority. 

 

Staff will be fully trained in the CCTV system and there will be at least one member of staff on duty 

during trading hours who is able to provide a recording of any incident within 48 hours of any request of 

Police or Local Licensing Authority. 

 

Door Staff will only be required to be in attendance in the evenings if more than 100 customers are 

expected to be on site at any given time. 

 

In the event that the expected number of customers on site at any given time is: 

 

(i) Between 100 and 150,  one member of door staff will be on duty, 

(ii) For the period of time where the expected number  on site is between 150 and 250 there will 

be 2 door staff and; 

(iii) For the period of time where the expected number on site is between 250 and 360 there will be 

3 door staff. 

 

When door staff are required at least one member of door staff will be on duty by 21.00 hours  

 

Further members of door staff will be required to be on duty from 23.00 hours, unless requested to 

attend earlier by management. 

 

Door staff will remain on duty until close of the premises unless the number of customers fall below 50. 

In that event the number of door staff required to be on duty will be reduced to one until close of the 

premises.   

 

All security staff will display their name badges by way of a reflective armband. 

 

A log book will be kept detailing all incidents that occur at the premises.  This will be a bound book 

which will detail the following:- 

 

a) The day, date and time of the incident 

b) The member of staff making the entry 

c) All members of staff involved in the incident 

d) An account of the incident 

e) Details of any persons injured and the injuries sustained 

f) Any other details thought relevant 

 

A register will be kept of all security staff working at the premises for every time that the premises are 

open for trading.  This register will be a bound book and it will contain the following information:- 

 

a) Day and date of entry 

b) Time that member of security staff starts and finishes work 

c) Full name 

d) SIA registration number 

e) Signature of the member of security staff 

 

A drugs policy will be produced by the Premises Licence Holder and agreed with the Police. 

46



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 8 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

 

All drinks intended for consumption on the premises, both alcoholic and non-alcoholic will be served in 

either polycarbonate or toughened glass. All bottled drinks usually drunk directly out of the bottle will be 

decanted into either polycarbonate or toughened glass. Only exception to the decant part of this 

condition will be champagnes, cocktails, wine and bottle service spirits. 

 

A representative of the Premises Licence Holder will actively participate in the Nite Net radio system 

and will also be a member of the Night Time Economy Forum attending on average 4 meetings a year 

and ensuring that a record is kept to establish that those minutes have been read and as necessary 

actioned.  

 

A responsible person at the premises will monitor the Nite Net radio at all times that the premises are 

trading. 

 

No open vessels, bottles or other type of container will be allowed outside of the licensed premises or 

the area licensed under the Kent County Council street furniture licence. 

 

All staff will be fully trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act and the training will be fully 

auditable and available to any responsible authority on request. 

 

It will be the responsibility of the premises licence holder to ensure that any queue forming at the 

entrance to the premises is orderly and supervised in such way so that it does not cause a nuisance to 

other nearby businesses, passing pedestrians and traffic. 

 

An auditable system will be used to record the number of customers within the premises whenever it is 

open for trading. 

 

No persons under the age of 18 years will be allowed on the premises in any case after 23:00 hours 

unless attending a private pre-booked function or event. 

 

All staff will be fully trained in 'Challenge 25' and the training will be fully auditable and available to any 

responsible authority on request.  

 

Notices to advise customers that 'Challenge 25' is in force and notices will be prominently displayed in 

all areas to that effect. 

 

The only proof of age that will be accepted will be a passport, photographic driving licence or an 

accredited 'PASS' marked proof of age card. 

 

A noise level for the provision of regulated entertainment in the outside areal will be set by agreement 

with the Community Protection Team of Maidstone Borough Council and thereafter can only be varied 

by agreement in writing which would include e-mail. 

 

The Premises Licence Holder will comply with the requirements of the Noise Management Plan 

attached (Appendix 5) 

 

This plan will be reviewed annually and any update lodged with the licensing authority. 

 

The licence holder shall make available a contact number for local residents to contact the premises to 

discuss any specific incidents or concerns either during or after events.  This will be manned throughout 

the time an event takes place. 

 

We will scan customers on a deemed risk basis until 03:00am. Smokers must remain in the designated 

smoking area at all times. 

 

47



Licence Number: 23/03511/LAPMV Page 9 of 9 

Issue Date: 09/10/2023  

Licence issued by: 

The Licensing Partnership  P.O. Box 182  Sevenoaks  Kent  TN13 1GP 

Telephone number: 01732 227004 

 

Licence holder and/or designated premises supervisor shall ensure that at least one person who has 

passed the Personal Licence exam is available on the licensed Premises while the sale or supply of 

alcohol is being undertaken at the premises. 

 

A designated glass collector will be employed, to collect empty glasses during trading hours. 

 

The premises shall have a written dispersal and search policy that outlines the procedure for 

management, door supervisors and staff. The policy will contain procedures on 

a) How door staff prevent overcrowding 

b) Supervise the queue to ensure that it is managed in a way that avoids rowdy, unpleasant behaviour 

and to keep customers quiet as to not disturb neighbours in the vicinity 

c) A procedure for door staff engaged in carrying out random searches. 

d) To ensure the dispersal of patrons from the curtilage and grounds of the licensed premises 

immediately after the end of licensable activities 

e) Prevent patrons from leaving the premises with open containers and bottles 

f) To provide evidence by written statement to police in any criminal investigation as 

and when required. 

g. The toilets shall be regularly monitored. 

 

We will operate a cooling down period of 15mins, prior to the end of session, where we will decrease 

sound levels to create a more calming atmosphere preparing us for close and full dispersal of patrons. 

 

The supply and use of body worn recording devices set to buffering mode and activated to record mode 

when an incident occurs. 

 

To deploy 2 x SIA door supervisors to the High Street 15mins prior to closing, with an additional 4 x SIA 

door supervisors to support and assist the dispersal process. 

 

There will be no new entries to the venue after 3am, excluding those that have been in the venue 

earlier. 

 

The venue will only use SIA registered supervisors, no marshal's will be used at the venue. 

 

Annex 4 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 

Not applicable 

 

Annex 5 – Plans 

 

Please see attached 

 

48



Form Name: Minor Variation to a Premises Licence (1.0).wdf
Form Reference: Christopher Dyer/ 
Record ID: 134535
Date Exported: 7/9/2023 15:07:00

REPORT APPENDIX 3

49



The Zoo
Scale: 1:2000
Printed on:

© Ordnance Survey Maps - Maidstone
Borough Council Licence No. 100019636, 2017

© Maidstone Borough Council

Ordnance Survey - data derived from OS PremiumOrdnance Survey - data derived from OS Premium

20 m
100 f t

REPORT APPENDIX 4

50

LorraineN
Pencil

LorraineN_1
Polygonal Line



REPORT APPENDIX 5

51



52



53



54



55



56



2

 
In summary, Zoo Nightclub's security measures stand out. Professional door staff, proactive 
management, and an efficient security team collectively contribute to a secure and enjoyable 
environment. Customers can enjoy the vibrant atmosphere, confident in Zoo Nightclub's 
commitment to their safety. 
 
Regards 
Arnold Sharp 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

57



58



59



60



61



2

and doormen, all of which is handled respectfully and professionally by the doorstaff. In many 
statements problems have arose when public intoxicated try to access and are refused entry. 
Zoo bar staff report all incidents via the town link radio, another significant cost in providing 
safety. Many incidents written talk of doorstaff using force, whilst a last option in any case 
having weapons and in some cases direct attack one must draw conclusion to common law 
being used, each member of doorstaff are licenced personally therfore are ultimately 
responsible for their actions, not Mr dyer. I feel by imposing any limits whatsoever on opening/ 
closing times will only serve as a punitive punishment, moreover what should happen is 
licencing officers along with police work with Mr dyer and support him in making the zoo bar 
venue even safer. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



2

of staff and customers. Both doorstaff and Management are welcoming and friendly and I feel 
safe to enjoy my night at the venue. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

72



73



2

arise. 
Mr Dyer is very respectful towards all people, staff including. he will help first hand with any 
issues that are present and make sure all is dealt with correctly and efficiently, he has a care 
to all people in his work place that enter and leave. The issues mentioned could happen in any 
premises at any time and often do. I have been to other premises in my time and have seen 
much much worse happen and not dealt with correctly, leaving people injured, scared and not 
wanting to go back. However, Zoo Bar is a dynamic place to be, very diverse and enjoyable 
with many people coming together, a place to feel safe that you are being looked after and 
treated well, when NO police are in town to support the venues. There is a chronic lack of 
policing.  
Therefore I will object to any licence review for these reasons 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



2

 
In this day and age it should not be down to one employee of the Council to pick and choose 
who he decides to bring down. I am questioning why he doesn't deal with other venues. 
 
The council need to ensure that this person is operating fair and effectively in addressing all 
venues in Maidstone and not being biased. He needs to be transparent and fair. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



2

woukd mean the disability event would have to close leaving many devastated & alot more 
isolated. 
 
I would personally miss seeing everyone & it would leave me feeling very sad & lost as its a 
venue I value & what it's done & how it's accommodated us has been above & beyond to 
support the event overall. 
 
Many thanks for reading  
 
Jason Halle 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

94



95



96



2

 
I would like to add another observation that I have recently made regarding Maidstone's issue 
with public order crime. I have seen that many more people have been turned away from entry 
at Zoo recently. Since this, it is no coincidence to me that certain individuals have been forced 
to go elsewhere, and that these problems have followed with them. To name one of these 
instances, a brawl commenced just outside of Ovation Bar's entrance on Sunday 17th March 
2024 in the early hours of the morning. I feel its strongly evident that Zoo bar and it's staff isn't 
the problem here, but a lack of policing in the area no doubt due to government budget cuts. I 
believe that if the town centre was better policed on Friday and Saturday nights, Maidstone 
would be a much safer town. I do not think it is fair to put so much weight on establishments 
(who have their hands tied by civil law) where the police should be far more present and able 
to deal with situations before they become out of hand. Deterrents should be implemented by 
police and the council to prevent members of the public, and door staff from being injured, 
harassed or threatened. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



2

warning and if they have carried on they are taken out and explained why they have taken 
them out etc and I believe this is a good example of how it's spose to be done I feel heard safe 
and looked after and as a woman I don't find this often in some of the other places IV been to 
do far here in Maidstone, I believe alot of safety issues in general in Maidstone could be sorted 
with more police as there is a lack of them in town most of the time  
 
All in all I'd hate to see this place minimised or closed down it's my favourite place to go to 
here. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

107



108



109



110



111



2

In summary, this is a venue I enjoy visiting and feel safe in doing so; which is more than can 
be said for some other local establishments! 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



2

few years ago, with reduced hours, these places which provide entertainment and hundreds 
of jobs need to be backed properly by an increase in policing during weekend nights. 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

120



121



122



123



2

The other factor is the staff in the venue I don't no how many staff they employ but reduced 
hours or closing the venue would put people out of work and during a time when COVID hit the 
entertainment venues very hard and now to cut the hours the staff would suffer greatly and 
potentially you may be making people homeless of putting them under immense stress and 
financial pressure. Also the venue owner I am sure would not be able to financially support a 
venue on reduced hours I don't think that would be feasible. Maidstone is a shadow of it's 
former self and it's about time councils start working with venues and shops not working 
against them as every other shop it shut many of the former night life has closed and never re 
opened do not let this venue be another derelict run down building !!!!! 

 
Kind regards  

  
 

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



2

This premises and the management can't be blamed for the issues that exist in society. It is 
clear they provide a fantastic service for 99.9% of the community 

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
 m  
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

136



137



2

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
   
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

138



139



2

staff were amazing as well. I was made to feel welcome and safe the whole time. I knew that if 
I ever felt uncomfortable in a situation then I could go to the staff and they would help 
immediately. Since going here I now spend my Friday and Saturday nights at zoo bar. I can 
go to the club by myself without any friends and know that I can see several people that I can 
spend my time with. To be able to go to a club as a lone female was something I never 
imagined I could do. It has become more of a social environment for me. Since my time of 
going to zoo bar it has become very apparent that there seems to be no police in town to 
support venues at early hours of the morning and even in some instances they are not there 
to help before midnight. This leaves the venue dealing with the issues alone and they have 
always dealt with any situations I have seen accordingly. 

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
 m  
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

140



141



2

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
   
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

142



143



2

incidents all over town in many different premises. When I have been at Zoo bar both the door 
staff and managment have delt with any issues swiftly and without any issues or support from 
police.  
 
On top of the above statement i've always seen the easy approach the door staff have along 
with their willingness to help people and build strong relationships with the regulars that attend 
zoo. 
 
I have also viewed in person zoo bar refusing many people entry only to then find out that the 
very same people refused from Zoo that evening were at ovation (previously strawberry 
moons) where there was a near 30 man brawl outside in the early hours. The real issue is lack 
of support, a finger pointing blame culture within the council and the local police all while 
neither support these businesses which provide jobs and revenue in the town centre. its a 
cultural and lack of support issue which falls onto maidstone town centre to address rather 
than sweep under the carpet, blame the venues and shut them down. For a healthy town to be 
successful we need a day time, early evening and a late evening offering. 

 
Kind regards  

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

     
M    

m     
 m  
  

     
M    

m     
 m  
  P

     
M    

m     
 m  

   

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
  

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

144



145



2

stabbed or cut with a weapon at other venues. Also issues can occur at any time day or night. 
There was a serious incident at a venue recently in Maidstone at 5pm!! which was posted on 
KM online and Kent police social media. 

 
Kind regards  

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

     
M    

m     
 m  
  

     
M    

m     
 m  
  P

     
M    

m     
 m  

   

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
  

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

146



147



2

tighten their controls because of a degrading society and an increase of weapons within 
Maidstone., 5 years ago no venues were searching people for weapons, what has happened 
in the last 5 years? At the same time venues have virtually no legal power to deal with some 
situations that can occur. Is it a venues fault that people come back after leaving the area and 
cause further issues? How can anyone predict that this is going to occur? I have seen police 
move people on from a venue, only for police to leave the area and these members of public 
return shortly after. If the police can't move these people on affectively with their powers, how 
can a venue with no legal powers outside of their licensed premises deal with people like this? 
I noticed in the case that there are several references to similar situations which I feel is unjust 
to be used in this case. 

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
 m  
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

148



149



2

there governing it. Licensing officers very rarely have first hand experience working in such an 
operation and from my understanding James Williams has no such experience. I find it odd 
that this industry is dictated to by those who have no experience. Tell me another industry 
where that would work successfully? From my visits at zoo bar I have never seen 
management or door staff encouraging or letting bad behaviour continue. They often remove 
people who they feel will not comply with the house rules, surely therefore, promoting the 
licensing objectives. How can door staff or management predict peoples behaviours? How 
can they know what people have previously consumed or know what their real intent is? We 
all know that in order to gain access to a venue people must be on their best behaviour. I see 
the door staff talk to customers, ask for ID, search them, wand them and in general check 
their suitability for entry. What more can be reasonably asked from them? 

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
 m  
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

150



151



2

noting the lack of police presence in the area. However, the nightclub's responsible 
management and security team effectively fill this gap, promptly addressing any incidents and 
maintaining a safe environment for the town's residents. It's crucial for them to keep their 
premises license to sustain this community-oriented approach, as it shows their dedication to 
ensuring the well-being of everyone who visits their establishment. 

 
Kind regards  

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

     
M    

m     
 m  
  

     
M    

m     
   
  P

     
M    

m     
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



2

council intend to move the town away from having a full and vibrant Night time economy - is 
that what the people really want? is this review part of a preconceived idea and plan to close 
the Night time Economy?  
 
I feel it's important to maintain a Night time economy for future generations, as I'm sure all 
those who are responsible for judging the outcome of this case have enjoyed nights out in their 
youth but perhaps they do not anymore in the same way. 

 
Kind regards  

 

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



2

real effort to work with the venue or has the case been quietly built to trip them up. I think 
some real questions need to be asked here 

 
Kind regards  

 

184



185



186



187



2

of handling any problems that come up, even without much police presence in the area. So, 
it's crucial for them to keep their license to continue providing a safe and fun place for us to 
hang out.  
 
Kind Regards 
Jack 

 
Kind regards  

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
 

   
M   

m  
 m  
  

   
M   

m  
   
  P

   
M   

m  
 m  

   

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

188



189



2

I have personally attended the above events on several occasions. I fully support the events 
that take place within the building. I consider and trust that it will be allowed to continue as 
an asset to the community of Maidstone. 

 
Kind regards  

 
     

M    
m     

 m  
   

     
M    

m     
 m  
  

     
M    

m     
 m  
  P

     
M    

m     
 m  

   

 
   

M   
m  

 m  
  

 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient you may not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and 
notify the sender by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks 
District Council shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council 
may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.  
How do we handle your data? Would you like to unsubscribe from our emails?  
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  

190



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HUMAN RIGHTS 
 
Article 8 
1. Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his correspondence. 
2. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except such as is 

in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic society in the interests of national 
security, public safety or the economic well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder or 
crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of 
others. 

 
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol 
Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. No one shall be 
deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by 
law and by the general principles of international law. The preceding provisions shall not, however, in 
any way impair the right of a State to enforce such laws as it deems necessary to control the use of 
property in accordance with the general interest or to secure the payment of taxes or other 
contributions or penalties. 
 
 
Article 6(1) 
In the determination of his civil rights and obligations or of any criminal charge against him, everyone 
is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial 
tribunal established by law. Judgement shall be pronounced publicly but the press and public may be 
excluded from all or part of the trial in the interest of morals, public order or national security in a 
democratic society, where the interests of juveniles or the protection of the private life of the parties so 
require, or to the extent strictly necessary in the opinion of the court in special circumstances where 
publicity would prejudice the interests of justice. 
 
 
Article 10 
3. Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. This right shall include freedom to hold opinions 

and to receive and impart information and ideas without interference by public authority and 
regardless of frontiers. This Article shall not prevent States from requiring the licensing of 
broadcasting, television or cinema enterprises.  

4. The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it duties and responsibilities, may be subject 
to such formalities, conditions, restrictions or penalties as are prescribed by law and are 
necessary in a democratic society, in the interests of national security, territorial integrity or public 
safety, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, for the 
protection of the reputation or rights of others, for preventing the disclosure of information 
received in confidence, or for maintaining the authority and impartiality of the judiciary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report Appendix 6 

191



 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\0\AI00052074\$phfvikjq.doc 

1 

 
 

 

LICENSING AUTHORITY: 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure of  

Applications for the Review of a Premises Licence or Club Premises 
Certificate 

 

 
 

 

Introduction and Procedure 
 
 

 
i) Introductions  

 

The Chairman will request all those persons participating in the hearing to identify 
themselves, starting with the: 

 

 Members of the sub-committee (who will, if applicable, declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests) 

 

 Legal advisor 
 

 Committee clerk 

 

 Maidstone Borough Council licensing officers/managers 
 

 The licence/certificate holder (and any representative) 

 

 The applicant for review* (and any representative) 
 

 Each responsible authority (and any representative) 

 

 Each interested party (and any spokesperson or representative)   
 
 

ii) Procedural Matters 
 

• Procedure 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Confirm that all parties are aware of the sub-committee hearing procedure and 
that each party has a copy of the hearing procedure document. 
 

 
* Not applicable following a closure order.  

REPORT APPENDIX 7 

192



 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\0\AI00052074\$phfvikjq.doc 

2 

• Submissions 
 
The Chairman will: 

 

 Explain that the sub-committee will allow all parties to put their case fully and 
make full submissions, within a reasonable time frame. 

 
 

• Discussion and cross-examination 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Explain that the sub-committee procedure shall take the form of a discussion led 
by the sub-committee. 

 

 Explain that the sub-committee will usually permit cross examination (conducted 
within a reasonable time frame). 

 
 

• Disruptive Behaviour 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Explain that where any person attending the hearing behaves in a disruptive 
manner, the sub-committee may direct that person to leave the hearing 
(including temporarily) and thereafter the person may submit to the sub-
committee in writing any information which the person would have been entitled 

to give orally had the person not been required to leave the hearing. 
 

• Reading of Papers 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Confirm that all sub-committee members have pre–read all the papers and any 
other documents contained in the report regarding the hearing.  

 

• Draft Conditions 
 

The Chairman will: 
 

 Enquire whether draft conditions have been agreed between the 
licence/certificate holder and any of the other parties for the sub-committee to 
consider. 

 

• Witnesses 
 
The Chairman will: 

 

 Enquire whether any parties request to have any witnesses give evidence at the 
hearing; and if so grant the request unless the request is unreasonable. 
 

 Invite the parties, where appropriate, to appoint a spokesperson. 
 

193



 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\0\AI00052074\$phfvikjq.doc 

3 

The Hearing 
 
Outline of the Application and Representations 

 The Chairman will ask the legal advisor or community services manager to briefly 
outline the application and all representations regarding the application. 

 

i) The Applicant for Review 
 

 Opening remarks by the applicant for review (or their representative). 
 

 Evidence of the applicant for review and any witnesses. 
 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by the 
licence/certificate holder, each responsible authority, interested party and sub-
committee member. 

 

 If necessary, the applicant for review (or their representative) may clarify any 
matter that arose during questioning. 
 

ii) Responsible Authorities (where applicable) 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
AUTHORITY 

Tick if applicable 

Police  

Trading standards  

Environmental Health  

Child Protection 
(Social Services) 

 

Planning  

Fire and Rescue  

 
 

 Opening remarks by the officer representing the responsible authority (or their 

representative).   
 

 Evidence of the responsible authority officer and any witnesses. 
 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by the applicant 
for review, the licence/certificate holder, each other responsible authority, interested 
party and sub-committee member. 

 

 If necessary, the officer (or their representative) may clarify any matter that arose 
during questioning. 

 
iii) Interested Parties 

 

 Opening remarks by the interested party (or spokesperson/representative).   
 

 Evidence of the interested party and any witnesses. 

 

194



 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\0\AI00052074\$phfvikjq.doc 

4 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by the 
applicant for review, the licence/certificate holder, responsible authorities, each 

other interested party and sub-committee member. 
 

 If necessary, the interested party (or spokesperson/representative) may clarify any 
matter that arose during questioning. 

 
 

iv) The Licence/Certificate Holder 
 

 Opening remarks by the licence/certificate holder (or their representative). 

 

 Evidence of the licence/certificate holder and any witnesses. 
 

 After each person has given evidence the person may be questioned by the 

applicant for review, each responsible authority, interested party and sub-committee 
member. 

 

 If necessary, the licence/certificate holder may clarify any matter that arose during 
questioning. 
 

 
 

Closing Speeches 
 
In the following order: 
 

 The applicant for review 
 

 Each responsible authority 
 

 Each interested party 
 

 The licence/certificate holder 
 

 

 

End of Hearing 
 

 

 The Chairman will ask the members of the sub-committee if they have any final 
questions for any party to the hearing.  

 

 The Chairman will ask the legal advisor whether there are any further matters to be 
raised or resolved before the hearing is closed.  

 

 The Chairman will invite the legal advisor to remain with the sub-committee during 
its deliberations. 
 

195



 

 
D:\mgMaidstone\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\0\AI00052074\$phfvikjq.doc 

5 

 The Chairman will bring the hearing to a close and shall declare that the sub-
committee will retire, to private session, to consider the application, all relevant 

representations, evidence, the relevant extracts of Licensing Authority’s Statement 
of Licensing Policy, the relevant extracts of the National Guidance issued under 
section 182 of The Licensing Act 2003 and the licensing objectives under the 

Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 The Chairman shall ask all other persons to withdraw from the room. 
 
 

The Decision 
 

 
The Chairman shall declare in public session: 

 

 The sub-committee’s determination. 
 

 All parties to the hearing will receive a copy of the written Determination Notice 
regarding the sub-committee’s determination. 
 

 All parties may appeal against the sub-committee’s decision within 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the appellant is notified of the Licensing Authority’s 
written determination.  Appeals must be lodged with the Magistrates’ Court.  The 
decision of the sub-committee does not take effect until the period for appealing has 

ended, of if there is an appeal, upon completion of the appeal.  Parties should be 
aware that the Magistrates Court may make an order with respect to costs on any 

appeal. 
 

 The hearing is formally closed. 

196



Document is Restricted

197

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

207

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

509

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

811

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	7 Application for Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for The Zoo,10 - 11 Market Buildings, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1HP
	Report Appendix 1-  Application Zoo review
	PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
	Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
	Notes for Guidance

	     
	Post code
	     
	Post town

	Report Appendix1a - Zoo application appendices 5,13,22,26 & 28_Redacted,
	Report Appendix 2 - Premise Licence_Redacted
	Report Appendix 3 - Plan of the premises
	Report Appendix 4 - Plan of the area The_Zoo
	The Zoo

	Report Appendix 5 - The Zoo - comments of support 1 - 117_Redacted
	Report  Appendix 6 - HUMAN RIGHTS
	Report  Appendix 7 - Review Hearing Procedure

	8 Exempt Appendices to Item 7 -  Application for Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for The Zoo,10 - 11 Market Buildings, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1HP
	8.1 Appendix - Report Part 2 Supplementary Appendices 1-31_Part1
	8.1 Appendix - Report Part 2 Supplementary Appendices 1-31_Part2
	8.1 Appendix - Report Part 2 Supplementary Appendices 1-31_Part3




